CABINET

MINUTES of the meeting held on Tuesday, 23 April 2024 commencing at 2.00 pm and finishing at 3.35pm

Present:

Voting Members:	Councillor Liz Leffman – in the Chair Councillor Dr Pete Sudbury (Deputy Chair) Councillor Tim Bearder Councillor Neil Fawcett Councillor Andrew Gant Councillor Kate Gregory Councillor John Howson Councillor Dr Nathan Ley Councillor Judy Roberts
	Councilior Judy Roberts

Other Members in Attendance:

Councillors Liz Brighouse OBE, Donna Ford, Charlie Hicks and Kieron Mallon

Officers:

Whole of meeting

Martin Reeves (Chief Executive), Lorna Baxter (Executive Director of Resources & Section 151 Officer), Anita Bradley (Director of Law & Governance and Monitoring Officer), Ansaf Azhar (Corporate Director Public Health & Community Safety), Bill Cotton (Corporate Director Environment & Place) Karen Fuller (Corporate Director Adult Social Care), Jean Kelly (Deputy Director Children's Social Care), Colm Ó Caomhánaigh (Democratic Services Manager)

The Cabinet considered the matters, reports and recommendations contained or referred to in the agenda for the meeting, together with a schedule of addenda tabled at the meeting, and decided as set out below. Except insofar as otherwise specified, the reasons for the decisions are contained in the agenda, reports and schedule, copies of which are attached to the signed Minutes.

48/24 APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE

(Agenda Item. 1)

Apologies for absence were received from Councillor Dan Levy.

49/24 DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST (Agenda Item. 2)

There were none.

50/24 MINUTES

(Agenda Item. 3)

The minutes of the meeting held on 19 March 2024 were approved as a correct record.

51/24 QUESTIONS FROM COUNTY COUNCILLORS (Agenda Item. 4)

There were none received.

52/24 PETITIONS AND PUBLIC ADDRESS (Agenda Item. 5)

8 Vision Zero Strategy

Danny Yee Kate Fuller Alison Hill Alison Hill (on behalf of Robin Tucker, CoHSAT)

9 Future Generations Mission Statement

Cllr Charlie Hicks

53/24 APPOINTMENTS

(Agenda Item. 6)

There were none to report.

54/24 REPORTS FROM SCRUTINY COMMITTEES

(Agenda Item. 7)

Councillor Kieron Mallon, Chair of the Place Overview & Scrutiny Committee, presented the report on Visio Zero.

Councillor Liz Brighouse, Deputy Chair of the Education and Young People Overview and Scrutiny Committee, presented the report on Draft Action Plan.

Cabinet received the reports and will respond in due course.

55/24 VISION ZERO STRATEGY

(Agenda Item. 8)

Cabinet had before it a report on the Vision Zero strategy and action plan which set out how the Council aimed to achieve its target of a reduction in collisions to zero fatalities and life changing injuries from road traffic collisions by 2050: with an interim target of 25% reduction by 2026 and 50% reduction by 2030. It ensured the highway network was safely designed, implemented, and maintained with Vision Zero at the heart of the Council's decision making.

Councillor Andrew Gant, Cabinet Member for Transport Management, presented the report. He thanked the speakers for their contributions to the meeting and referred to the valuable role played by the Council's co-production partners in the development of these strategies.

During discussion, members made the following points:-

- The large number of requests from parish councils for 20mph speed restrictions
- The need for the Council to be ambitious in seeking to meet the targets set out in the strategy and to implement measures that would result in a reduction in the number of car journeys
- The section on education should be enhanced to emphasise the need for cycle safety to be promoted in schools and for all schools, including those in the independent sector, to take on board initiatives on road safety.
- The need to address problems caused by overweight vehicles and for heavy vehicles to keep to their designated routes.
- The importance of adequate communication on the need for the Vision Zero strategy in view of the results of the consultation exercise and concerns that the consultation appeared to be geared towards older sections of the community.

The Chair expressed the Council's thanks to all those who had been involved in the development of the strategy.

Councillor Gant moved and Councillor Ley seconded the recommendations, and they were approved.

RESOLVED to approve the Vision Zero Strategy and Action Plan 'Oxfordshire – Safe Roads through Vision Zero to 2030' as set out in the report.

56/24 FUTURE GENERATIONS MISSION STATEMENT

(Agenda Item. 9)

Cabinet had before it a report on a proposed mission statement on Future Generations. The Council had passed a motion setting out a commitment to considering Future Generations in decision-making, and as part of this there has been the appointment of a Future Generations Member Champion and Future Generations included in a Cabinet portfolio.

The next steps were to set out the approach and ambition to be one of the leading English councils in this space. A mission statement had been developed to set out the scale of the Council's goals, along with some initial actions of where to start work in this space.

Councillor Pete Sudbury, Deputy Leader of the Council with Responsibility for Climate Change, Environment & Future Generations, presented the report. He thanked Councillor Hicks for bringing forward the proposal on Future Generations to the Council and looked forward to working with him in his new role as Member Champion.

During discussion members welcomed the mission statement and expressed the hope that schools would participate in the Council's initiatives in this area of policy.

Councillor Sudbury moved and Councillor Leffman seconded the recommendation, and it was approved.

RESOLVED to agree the principle of Future Generations, and the mission statement that sets the direction of Oxfordshire County Council's work in this space.

57/24 CLIMATE ACTION PROGRAMME UPDATE (Agenda Item. 10)

Cabinet had before it a report which provided an update on work to address the Climate Emergency, including delivery of the 2023/24 Climate Action Programme workstreams.

The report noted the council's success in becoming the highest ranked county council in the UK for its Climate Action in Climate Emergency UK's Climate Scorecard and receiving an A- score in a shadow submission to the industry-leading CDP (formerly Carbon Disclosure Project) reporting framework.

The report provided an update on delivery of the council's Carbon Management Plan for 2023/24. An emissions reduction will be achieved due to the imminent completion of the street lighting LED replacement programme. Whilst preparatory work has taken place, delivery of works planned for property, fleet, and staff business travel in 23/24 had been pushed back into 24/25. Property projects for 2023/24 would now complete alongside the 2024/25 programme.

The report also noted that 21 of 27 workstreams in the climate programme agreed in 23/24 were rated as green.

Councillor Pete Sudbury, Deputy Leader of the Council with responsibility for Climate Change, Environment and Future Generations, presented the report.

He thanked all those who had contributed to the significant progress with the Council's climate agenda and, in particular, the team of officers for all their hard work.

The Chair also welcomed the progress detailed in the report and that the Council was being recognised, nationally, for its performance on climate change initiatives.

Councillor Sudbury moved, and Councillor Howson seconded the recommendations, and they were approved.

RESOLVED to

- a) note the biannual update on the delivery of the workstreams in the Climate Action Programme (Annex 1).
- b) approve adjustments to the programme for 2024/25 (Annex 2).
- c) approve the draft outcome measures for monitoring progress to a net zero Oxfordshire (Annex 3).

58/24 CAPITAL PROGRAMME APPROVALS - APRIL 2024 (Agenda Item. 11)

Cabinet had before it a report which set out changes to the Capital Programme requiring Cabinet approval that would be incorporated into the agreed programme and included in the next update to the Capital Programme in June 2024.

The Chair presented the report on behalf of the Cabinet Member for Finance.

Councillor Andrew Gant, Cabinet Member for Transport Management and Councillor John Howson, Cabinet Member for Children, Education and Young People's Services, explained details of the additional schemes within their respective portfolios.

Councillor Leffman moved and Councillor Howson seconded the recommendations, and they were approved.

RESOLVED to:

- a) approve the inclusion of the £2.384m Active Travel Fund 4 Extension (ATF4e) Grant into the capital programme to deliver active travel schemes across Oxfordshire.
- b) approve the inclusion of £1.260m grant funding from the Department for Transport Safer Roads Funds to carry out a specific package of road safety works.

- c) approve the drawdown of £2.000m of funds from the Parking Account to reinvest into three Park and Ride sites requiring maintenance work.
- d) approve the inclusion of Faringdon Community College, a scheme to replace temporary buildings with permanent accommodation, into the Capital Programme with an indicative budget of £6.006m to be fully funded from held & secure s106 contributions

OF 59/24 APPROVAL NEW MANAGED SERVICE RECRUITMENT CONTRACT

(Agenda Item. 12)

It was agreed that there was no requirement to exclude the public as there was no request to discuss the information in the exempt annex.

Cabinet had before it a report on the award of a managed service recruitment contract to a strategic supplier for the Council's contingent labour workforce.

Councillor Neil Fawcett, Cabinet Member for Community and Corporate Services, presented the report.

Fawcett moved and Councillor Sudbury Councillor seconded the recommendations, and they were approved.

RESOLVED to:

- a) approve the award of the managed service recruitment contract as Oxfordshire County Council's (OCCs) strategic supplier for our contingent labour workforce as set out in Exempt Annex 1. The aim is to award the contract by 1 June 2024 and the contract duration will be three years plus the option for a one-year extension; and
- b) delegate the finalisation of terms and conditions to the Director of Workforce and Organisational Development in consultation with the Head of Legal and Deputy Monitoring Officer and Head of Procurement.

60/24 FORWARD PLAN AND FUTURE BUSINESS

(Agenda Item. 13)

The Cabinet considered a list of items for the immediately forthcoming meetings of the Cabinet together with changes and additions set out in the schedule of addenda.

RESOLVED to note the items currently identified for forthcoming meetings.

61/24 FOR INFORMATION ONLY: CABINET RESPONSE TO SCRUTINY ITEM

(Agenda Item. 14)

Cabinet noted the following response to the Scrutiny report:-

Oxfordshire Education Commission

.....in the Chair

Date of signing